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STATE OF OHIO - 35 North Fourth Street, 1% Floor

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43215
, —— Telephone 614-266-4514
Jiv PETRO, AUDITCR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-728-7398

Board of Education
Wadsworth City School District
Wadsworth, Ohio 44281

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the Wadsworth City School District,
Medina County, prepared by Gary B. Fink & Associates, Inc., for the andit period July 1, 1998
through June 30, 1999. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the
audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the
accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not
express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected
by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the
Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The Wadsworth City School District is
responsible for compliance with these laws and regulations.

IM PETRO
Auditor of State

February 25, 2000
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GARY B. FINK & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
111 Broad Street

Suite 206

Wadsworth, Ohic 44281
330/336-1706 Fax 330/334-5118

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Wadsworth City School District
Wadsworth, Chic 44281

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial.statements of the
Wadsworth City School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, as
listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are
the responsibility of the Wadsworth City School District’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidenca
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purposa financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that ocur audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. : -

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above
prasent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Wadsworth
City School District, as of June 30, 1999 and the results of its operation and
the cash flows of 1its proprietary fund iypes  for the year then ended in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated January 24, 2000 on our consideration of the Wadsworth City School
District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Qur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for the purpose of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in aill
material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken

as a whole.
GARY 8. FINK & ASSQCIATES, INC.
January 24, 2000 Certified Public Accountants

"Professional Accountants for Professional Government/Relaed Non-Profits”
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Wadsworth City School District Pe “
CTombined Bolance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Groups

June 30, 1999

Governmental Fund Types —_
Special Capital
General Revenue Debt Service Projects

Assetsl
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 53,511,047 £400,205 $12,438,513 $26,284,355
Receivables:

Taxes 13,425,780 ¢ 995,399 644,017
Accounts 13,342 3,167 4] 0
Intergovernmental 950 6,998 0 0
Accrred Interest 44,234 0 0 251,584

Interfund Receivable ] 0 216,599 0
Prepaid Items 31,031 0 0 0
Restricted Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 174,187 0 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents - With Fiscal Agent ¢ ¢ 43,380 . . 0

Inventory Held for Resale 0 0 0 0
Materials and Supplies Inventory Q ¢ 0 0
Fixed Assets (Net, where appiicable,

of Accumuiated Depreciation) 0 T 0 0 ¢
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 0 0 0 0
Amount 1o be Provided from - .

General Government Resources 0 0 0 0
Total Assets and Other Debits 317.200.371 $410,370 $13.693.801 $27.179.956
Liobifities, Fund Equity and Other Credits . S .

Liabifities: -

Accounts Pavable S157.857 $20.023 50 §783.834
Accrued Wages 1.397.202 : 26.656 ) 0 : -0
Compensated Absences Payable 159416 5,766 0 0

Interfund Payable 0 78,765 0 130,859
Intergovernmental Payable 364239 : 11,157 Q o
Deferred Revenue 12,771,673 0 $96,199 620,158
Undistributed Monies 0 .0 ]
Claims Payable 0 0 v ¢
Due to Students 0 0 o 0
Accrued Interest Payable 0 0 43,380 [}
Notes Payable : 0 0 0 0
General Obligation Bonds Payable 0 _ 0 a 4]
Total Liabilities _ 14.850.387 142.369 939,579 1.534.851
fund Equity and Other Credits: B
Investment in Generai Fixed Assets o C 0 Q .0
Retaned Eamings:

Unreserved 0 0 a t]
Fund Balance: -

Reserved for Encumbrances 456,897 112,416 0 22,565,206
Reserved for Prepaid Items 31,031 0 0 0
Reserved for Debt Service Principal 0 Q 12,655,112 0
Reserved for Property Taxes 654.107 0 99,200 23,859

Reserved for Budget Stabilization ' 174,187 ¢ 0 0

Unreserved: .

Undesignated 1,033,962 155,585 | . & 3,056,040
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits 2,350,184 268,001 12,754 312 25,645,105
Totat Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits $17.200.571 $410.370 $13.693.891 $27.179.936

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements



Fiduciary )
Proprietary Fund Types ___ Fund Type ____Account Groups i
General General Totals
Internat Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum
Enterprise __Service Agency Assets Cbligations Oaly)
$108,575 $343,074 $88,767 $0 $0 $43,174,536
o 0 0 0 i} 15.065,196
4,026 2,170 30,036 0 ] 52,741
0 0 0 0 0 7,948
aQ g Q Q 0 295818
) 0 0 0 0 216,599
0 0 0 0 0 31,031
0 0 0 0 0 174,187
0 0 0 0 0 43,380
12,448 0 0 0 0 12,448
1,183 0 0 0 0 1183
135,378 0 0 31,339,480 ] 31,474,358
0 0 0 0 12,754.312 12,754,312
0 0 o B 029848898 _.__ 29848898
$261,610 $345 244 $118.803 $31,339.480 $42.603.210 $133,153,135
$16.284 S7.081 $3.436 50 S0 $988.517
16,082 0 6,037 0 ) 1,445,977
53,707 0 2,637 0 2,723,710 2,945,236
0 0 6,975 0 9 216,599
109,624 ] 2,607 &0 259,500 747,127
6,401 0 ) 0 _ 90 14,254 431
0 0 49,621 0 ) 49,621
0 109,922 0 ] 0 109,922
0 0 47,490 0 0 47450
0 0 0 0 0 43,380
0 0 0 0 12.000,000 12,000,000
9 0 0 0 27620,000 27 620,000
202.098 _117.003 118803 _ . .. ...0  .__32603210 60,308 300
»

0 0 ] 31.339,480 0 31,339,480
59,512 228241 0 0 0 287,753
0 0 0 0 0 23,134,519
0 0 ] 0 0 31,031
0 0 0 0 B 0 12655112
0 0 0 0 0 777,166
0 0 0 0 0 174,187
0 0 0 0 e D 4245587
59,512 228 241 0 . 31339480 0 72644835

—B26L610. _ _ §345244 _ SUIS803 . _S3LI30480 . $42603210 . $LIBLJ3S



J 1]
Wadsworth City Schoel District

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Batances
All Governmental Fund Types
For the Fiscal Vear Ended June 30, 1999

Goverpmental Fund Types e
- Socolsl = Capmal
General Revenne Debt Service Projects B
Revenuss: = - g T

Taxes $12,612,973 30 $1,290,387 $601,467
Intergovernmental 9,022,133 1,190,365 148,981 389,874
Interest 291,472 2,043 20,479 1.061,737
Tuition and Fees 145,221 1] [¢] [+]
Rent 66,653 4] o D
Extracurricular Activities [ 471,168 0 ]
Gifts and Donations 0 0 0 66,185
Costomer Services 8,977 0 0 0
Miscellaneous _S7.680 _147.6997ﬁ vO 0
Totol Revenues 22,205,108 1,678,466 1,459,847 2,119,263
Expenditures:

Current:

[nstruction:
Regular 10,960,254 105,147 0 112230
Special 1,218,461 229,438 0 0
Vocational 826,853 203,516 ¢ 0
Other 152,188 i} 0 0
Support Services:
Pupilx 1,256,619 31,242 [l 33311
Instructional Staff 816.651 251,004 ¢ 0
Board of Education 231,591 0 0 3]
Admunistration 1.686.404 248.557 0 n
Tiscal 552716 0 22786 13.03%
Business 696 n B T
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 7347,731 1} i} 376,785
Pupii Teansportation 1.182,238 76358 v u
Centrai 461,612 33.260 n 4]
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 0 158,350 1} 0
Extracurricnlar Activities - -436.877 343,405 Q 0

Capitsi Qutlay 19,757 4] 1] 4,756,695
Debt Servige:

Principal 0 0 10,755,000 0

Interest 0 0 1,006,134 Q
Total Expenditures 22,131,648 1,811,877 11,783,920 4,242,060

Excess tDeﬁ'c.iency) of Revenues T T e ——

Over (Under) Expenditures 73.461 (133.41 1Y { 30._3_2:1_'.073) (3.1_2:’..797)
Other Financing Sewrees (Vsesy: n

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 12,650 0 0 0
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 0 [\ R 12,005,145 1,000,600
Proceeds from Sale of Long-Term Notes o] 0 i} 12,000,000
Operating Transfers In 0 60.600 0 0
Operatng Transfers Out (60,000} 0 4} 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) __{47.350) 60.000 12,005,145 13,000,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and

Other Financing Sonrces Qver (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 26,111 (73,411 1,681,072 9,877,203
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,335,873 341,412 11,073,240 15,767,903
Residual Equity Transfers (11,800) _ 0 0 0
¥und Balances at End of Year 50,184 ﬂﬁs!()ﬂl §1%’1’54i312 525!545!106

Sec accompanying notes to the general purposs financial statements

[



Totais
(Memorandnm

— Ondy)

$14,504,827
10,751,553
1,375,731
145,221
66,653
471,168
66,185
3,977

72,370
27,462,685

11,177,631
1,448,899
1,030,369

152188

[.521.172
[.067.655
31591
1,934,961
368,241
606
2674516
1.189.896
495,172
153.350
780,282
1,776,452

10,755.000
1.006,134

40,969,505

113.506.820)

12,650
13.005.145
12,000,000

60,000

(60.000}

25,017,795

11.510.975

29,518.428

{11.800)

. 341,017.603




Wadsworth City Schoui Diserict 7 Ll

Combined Statement ot Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budger and Acrtual { Budget Basis)

All Governmental Fund Types

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

General Fund
o S N Varance -
Favorable
Budget Actual _(Uniavorable)
Intergovernimental - $9,052,886 $9,052,886 50
Interest 290,947 290,547 v}
Tuition and Fees 142,204 142,204 ) g
Rent 66,653 66,653 Y
Extracurricular Activities _ 0 ) ¢
Gifts and Donations 0 _ 0 0
Customer Services 8,977 8,977 0
Property and Other Local Taxes 12,759,649 12,759,649 0
Miscelianeous 19,880 19,880 6
Total Revenues 22,341,196 22,341,196 0
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction: - .- - R
Regular 10,993,228 10,993,228 1]
Special 1,188,452 1,188,452 0
Vocational 851,023 851,023 0
Other 130,356 130,356 0
Support services: )
Pupiis 1,266,185 1,266,185 4}
Instructional Statf 873,328 873,328 0
Board of Education, 234,365 234,365 0
Administration 1,743,070 1,743.070 0
Fiscal 346,466 346,466 ¢}
Business 696 594 D
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2.605.653 2,605,653 0
Pupil Transporation - L 1.186.404 1,186.404 0
Central 161.613 461.613 0
Non-Instructional Services 0 o
Extracurricular activities 41,207 441,207 0
Capitai Outlay 47,753 47,753 Q
Debt Service: - -
Principal Retirement -0 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 o
Total Expenditures 22,569,799 22,569,799 0
(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures (228.603) (228.603) 0
Other Financing Sources and Uses
Qperating Trausiers in - 175847 175.847 .0
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 125,000 125,000 ]
Proceeds trom Sale of Long-Term Notes 0 0 o
Procesds trom Sale of Fixed Assets . Y 12730 12.750 0
Retuna ot Prior Year Expenditures 47916 47916 0
Advances In 260,430 269,430 0
Qperating Transfers Out (247,647 (247,647 ]
Refund of Prior Year Receipts (30,713) (30,713) 0
Advances Cut g g 1]
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 352583 352,583 2
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources QOver
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 123,980 123,980 0
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,631,924 2,631,924 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Approprigted 337.283 337,283 ¢
Fund Balances at End of Year $3,093,187 $3,093,187 30

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements

i



Speciat Revenue .. Debt Service — )
; - Vanance i ’ i s ce = =
Favorable Favorabie
Budget Astuai (Unfavorable) Budget Acual  (Uniavorable)
$1,194,998  §1,194,998 $0 $148981  $148,981 S0
2.175 2.175 0 20,982 20982 0
0 0 0 o 0 0
0 0 0 0 o 0
470,839 470,939 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 D 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 1,262,855 1,262,855 0
14,690 14,690 0 0 7 0 0
1,682,702 1.682.702 0 1,432,818 1432818 0o
111,723 111,723 0 0o o 0
223.714 223714 0 0 0 0
235,065 235,065 R 0 0
0 0 0 g —p - 0
237.158 237,158 0 0 0 0
254,834 254,834 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 o -0 0
2634457 263.457 0 o n 0
0 0 0 T TI7RE T 22786 0
0 D D 9 0 0
0 0 0 9 o 0
6.698 6,698 0 o " 0
34.523 34.523 0 o o 9
192,618 192,618 S :
369,353 369,353 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 o T~ 0
0 0 0 10,755,000 10,755,000 0 )
0 D 0 1,076,841 1,076,841 0 .
1,929,143 1,929,143 0 1185467 11854627 i
(246.441) (246 441) 0 _ (10.421.809) _ (10,421,809) o
60,000 60.000 D 0 0 0
) b D 12.048.525 12.048.525 D
0 10 0 0 V] 0
9 0 0 — 2 0
9 0 0 0 0 0
78,765 78.765 n 13692 13.692 n
0 0 0 R 0
(13.724) (13,724) 0 b — 0
(3L427) _ _ (31,427) 0 (33029 _ _ (230291 _ D
93.614 03614 0 _ 11.831.926 11.831,926 _ 0 )
(152,827 (152.827) 0 _ 1410117 _ 1410117 0
304,022 304.022 0 __1107L775 11071775 0 ’
117.475 117.475 0 3 0 0 |
$268,670 $268,670 S0 _ $12.481,892 _ $12.481.892 $0 )
(wnﬁn;e;ﬁ o -



Wadsworth Clry Senootl Districr

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actuai (Budget Basis) (Continucd)

All Governmental Fund Types
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 -
Camtal Projects
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Revenues

Intergovernmental $389,874 $389,874 %0
Interest 981,529 981,529 0
Tuition and Fees 0 0 0
Rent 0 Q 0
Extracurricular Activities 0 Q 0
Gifts and Donations 66,184 66,184 0
Customer Services 0 0 0
Property and Other Local Taxes 607,031 607,031 0
Miscellanecus 0 0 0

Total Revenuyes 2,044,618 2.044,618 0
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction;
Regular 129.396 129,396 ¢
Special 0 ) o
Vocational 0 0 ]
Other -0 0 Q
Support services: PO .
Pupils 33,311 33,311 0
[nstructional Staff 0 0 0
Board of Education 0 0 0
Administration 0 0 0
Fiscal 13,039 13,039 0
Business .- 0 0 0
Operation and Maintenance ot Flant CLZ9T79s 1.129.795 G
Pupd Transporiation i 0 o
Central 0 4] 0

Non-insiructional Services - Q ]

Extracurricular agtivities 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 26,565,414 26,565,414 0
Debt Service: n -

Principal Retirement 0 0 0

Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 9

Total Expenditures 27,870,955 27,870,955 ]
(Deficiency)} of Revenues (Under) Expenditures (25.826.337) {25,826,337) 0
Operaung Transiers In 0 ] )
Proceeds from Sate of Bonds £.000.060 1.000.00¢ U
Proceeds Irom Sale of Long-Term Notes 12.000.000 12.000.000 0
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Asscts 7 0 0 0
Helund of Prior Year Expendiures 0 0 0
Advances [n 130,858 130,858 0
Operating Transfers Qut 0 0 0
Refund of Prior Year Receipts 0 0 0
Advances Qut (234,951} (234.951) o
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 12,805,907 12.895,907 Q
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Cver

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (12,930,430) (12,930,430} 0
Fund Baiances st Beginning of Year 11,223,828 11,223,828 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 4,583,603 4,583 603 0
Fund Balances at End of Year $2.877.001 $2,877.001 $0

10




Tatals {Memorandum Only)

Vartance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
510,786,739 510,786,739 0
1,295,633 1,295,633 L
142,204 142,204 it
66,653 66,653 g
470,839 470,839 "0
66,184 66,184 Q
8.977 8.977 0
14,629,535 14,629,535 . 3
34,570 34,570 O
27,501,334 27,501,334 Q
11,234,347 11,234,347 0
1,412,166 1,412,166 0
1,036,088 1,086,088 Q.
130,356 130,356 g
1,536,654 1,536,654 a
1,128,162 1,128,162 a
234,365 234,363 0
2.006.527. 2,006,527 0
3822917 582,291 0
596 696 0
3.735448 3.735.448 U
1.193.102 1.193.102 0
496.136 496,136 0
192,618 192,618 0
310.560 810,560 0
26,613,167 26,613,167 0
10,755,000 -10,753,000 Y
1,076,841 1,076,841 0
64,224,524 64,224,524 0
{36.723.190) _ (36,723,190} i
235.347 235.847 0
13,173,525 13.173.525 - - -0
{2.000.000 [2.000.000 0
12,720 12,750 )
+7.916 17,916 )
392,745 492.745 )
(247.647) (247,647) 0
{44,437) (44,437) 0
(496,669) (496.669) 0
25,174,030 235,174,030 0
(11,549.160) _ (11.549.160) o
25,231,549 25.231,549 i
5.038.361 5.038.361 0
518,720,750 518,720,750 50

11
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Nodeworth 40 Foliool THaoe e
Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity
All Proprietary Fund Types

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1939

Proprietary Fund Types . Totals_
" Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise “Service Cnly) _

ratin I -
Tuition T $9,871 50 39.871
Sales 740,586 0 740,586
Charges for Services 175473 i,598.853 1,774,326
Other Operating Revenues 1] 165 165
Total Operating Revenues 925,930 1,599,018 2,524,948 _
Operating Expenses:
Salaries 345,926 Q 345,926
Fringe Benefits 161,065 0 161,065 .
Purchased Services 11,267 218,746 230,013
Materials and Supplies 204,237 1,510 205,747
Cost of Sales . 392,906 ) 392,506
Depreciation - - 20,350 -0 203350
Capital Qutlay 3,207 0 3,207
Claims 1] 1.366,-409 1,366,409
Other 0 4,081 4,081
Total Operating Expenses 1,138,958 1,590,746 2,729,704
Operating Income {Loss) (213.028) 8272 (204.758) .
Nog-Operating Revenue ( Expensesy: oo
Federai Donated Commodities 45,300 o 45300 "
Interest 0 16,990 16,950
Federai and State Subsidies 127,603 0 127,603
Loss on Saie of Fixed Assets (143) o (143)

L]

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 172,760 16,990 189,750
Net Incorne (Loss) (40,268) 25,262 {15,006)
Retained Eamings at Beginning of Year 99.780 202979 302.759
Retaned Earnings at End of Vear © $59.512 5228.211 ____ $287.733

See accompanying notes to the seneral purpose (inancial statements

13
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T AT 3 a0 LT
Combired S*atement of & vl Flowg
Al Proprictary Fund Types
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

3
o

eratl clivities; - s
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Received from Tuition Payments
Cash Received from Other Operating Sources
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Employee Benefits
Cash Payments for Claims

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Operating Grants Received

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

Interest on Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net [nerease n Cash and Cash Equivatents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconetliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net

Operating incame (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Qperating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

L vities:
Depreciation
Donated Commoedities Used During Year
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Tncrease Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increasey Decrease in inventory Held for Resale

{Increase; Decrease in Materials and Supplies Inventory

increase/{Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Wages

increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable

Increase/(Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payeble
Increase/(Decrease) in Claims Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activitics

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements

15

Proprietary Fund Types Totals
" Internai (Memorandum
Enterprise ______Service i} ,ﬁg‘_’[}f}_ ‘
£813,049 $1,598,854 £2,511,903
9,871 0 9,871
2415 31,708 34,123
(556,770) (217,256) (774,026
(349,155} ] (349,155)
(i121,161) 0 (121,161)
0 {1,399,524) _(1,399,524)
(101,751) 13.782 (87,969}
127,603 0 127,603
127,603 0 127.603
(18,129 O 777(718,17729)
(18,129 & (18,129
4 16,990 16.990
1] 16,990 16,990
7723 20,772 38,495
100.852 312302 413,154
b ]08& ] $343.074 3_45 1.649
(213,028) 8272 __ {204,756)
20350 7 0 o 20350
45.300 0 ~_15.300
_ (3.00% I 8 ) (5179
3 0 3
(115) 0 AREI
- 12074 7,081 19,133
2,649 0 2.649
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YA0SNGATH £ITY CCHAGL DISTRIST ' "
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNE 30, 1899

NCTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE ENTITY

Wadsworth City School District (the District) is a body politic and corporate
established for the purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to
it by the constitution and laws of the State of Ohio.

The District operates under a Tocally-elected five-member board of sducation and
provides educational services as mandated by state and/or federal agencies. This
Board controls the District’s seven instructional/support facilities staffed by
182 noncertificated employees, 262 certificated full-time teaching personnel and
15 administrators who provide services to 4,051 students and other community
members.

The District provides more than instruction to its students. These additional
services include student guidance, extracurricular activities, educational media,
and care and upkeep of grounds and buildings. The operation of each of these
activities is directly controiled by the Board of Education through the budgetary
progess. These District operations will be included as part of the reporting
entity.

The District adopted the provisions of Government Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, under which the
financial statements inciude all the organizations, activities, functions and
component units for wnich the District is financialiy accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting magor1ty of the
component unft’s board and either (1) the District’s ability to impose its will
over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will
provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the District.

On this basis, the combined financial statements include all of the funds and
account groups of the District over which the Board of Education exercises
operating controil. Management has determined the District has no component
units.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 1is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmentail accounting and financial reportiing
principles. The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are
described below.

S F_PR - FUN NIING

The District uses funds and account groups to report its financial position and
results of operation. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate Tegal
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related
to certain District functions or activities.
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WADSUWORTH CITY SCHAOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts recording cash and other financial resources, together with a7l related
liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with special restrictions or limitations. An
account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability
for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because
they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources.

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the District
are grouped into the foilowing generic fund types under the broad fund
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category 1is then
divided into various fund types. The following are the fund types and account
groups utilized by the District.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

¢ e -

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the
District are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the Disirict’s
expendable financial resources and the refated current l1iabilities, except those
accounted for in proprietary and fiduciary funds, are accounted for through
governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position. The following are the District’s
governmental fund types:

General Fund

The general fund is the operating fund of the District and is used to account for
all financial resources except those required by law or contract to be accounted
for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the District for
any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws
of Ohio.

Special Revenue Fynds

Special revenue funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue
saurces {ather than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are 1ega?1y
resiricted to expenditure for specified purposes. . S

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general Tlong-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be expended
for the acquisition or constiruction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds).

18
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ARRSACATY 21T SgHOGL DISTRICY A
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1959

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
P Y S

Proprietary funds are used to account for the District’s ongoing activities which
are similar to those often found in the private sector. The District applies all
applicable pronouncements from the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
in accounting and reporting issued on or before November 30, 1988 for its
proprietary operations. The following are the District’s proprietary fund types:

Enterprise Funds L o - — ..

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that (a) are financed and
operated in a manner similar fo private business enterprises where the intent of
the District is that the costs (expenses; Tncluding depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the District has decided
that per1odic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pub11c pol1cy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service Fund

This fund is used to account for the financing of goods or servicas provided by
one department or agency to other departments ar agencies of the District on a
cost-reimbursement basis. ,

FIDUCTIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units, and other funds. The following are the District’s fiduciary
funds.

Agency Funds

These funds are purely custodial in nature and thus do non 1nvo1ve measurement
of results of operations.

ACCOUNT GROUPS

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and
those of general government, and long-term liabilities related to specific funds
and those of a general nature, the following account groups are used:

1 _Fixed C Grou

This account group is established to account for all fixed assets of the
District, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds.
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WADSWORTR CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({continued)
Gene -1 0

This account group is established to account for all long-term obligations of the
District except those accounted for in the proprietary funds.

MEA 1_FOCUS AND F AC

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined
by its measurement focus. A1l governmental funds are accounted for using a flow
of current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current Tiabilities are genera11y included on the balance
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and
other f1nanc1ng sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other f1nanc1ng
uses) in net current assets.

A1l proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all 1fabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet.
Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and
decreases. {(e.g., expensas) in net total assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for reporting purposes by all
governmental fund types and agency funds. Under this basis of accounting, the
District recognizes revenues in the accounting period when they become both
measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can
be determined. "Available" means collectable within the current fiscal period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal
period, which the District considers to be sixty days after year end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis,
the following revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available:
investment earnings, tuition, grants and entitlements, and student fees.

The District reports deferred revenue on its Combined Balance Sheet. Deferred
revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the measurablie and
available criteria for recognition in the current period. 1In the subsequent
period, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the Tiability for
deferred revenue is removed from the Combined Balance Sheet and revenue is
recognized. Property taxes measurable as of June 30, 1999, and delinguent
property taxes, whose availability is indeterminable and which are intended to
finance fiscal year 2000 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue. In
the proprietary fund types, unused donated commodities are reported as deferred
revenue.
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RRBTEOROW LT ETVAGL DISTRICY
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1899 - - - - - - =

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are
measurable and are recorded when the related fund Tiability is incurred except
for unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt which is reported
only when due, and the costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave which
are reported as expenditures in the period in which they will be liquidated with
availabie financial resources rather than in the period earned by empioyees.
Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized
in the governmental funds. :

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized when they are earned and become measurable, and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred, if measurable. The fair value of donated
commodities used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an
expense with a 1ike amount reported as donated commodities revenue.

BUDGETARY PROCESS

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and
entails the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable.
The major documents prepared are the Tax Budget, the Certificate of Estimated
Resources, and the Appropriation Resoiution, all of which are prepared cn the
budgetary basis of accounting. The Certificate of Estimated Resources and the
Appropriation Resolution are subject to amendment throughout the year with the
legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as
certified. A1l funds other than agency funds are legally required to be budgeted
and appropriated. The legal level of budgetary contral is at the object Tevel
within each function for the general fund and at the fund level for all other
ands. Budgetary modifications may only be made by resolution of the Board of
Education.

Tax Budget ) s

Prior to January 15. the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of
Education a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing for all funds. Public hearings are publicized and conducted to obtain
taxpayers’ comments. The express purpose of this budget document is to reflect
the need for existing {or increased) tax rates. No later than January 20, the
Board-adopted budget is filed with the Medina County Budget Commission for rate
determination.

21




e [

WRDSHCRTA CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

timated R es

Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resolution, the tax
rates as determined by the Budget Commission and receives the commission’s
Certificate of Estimated Resources which states the projected revenue of each
fund. Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget so that total
contempTated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed
the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revisad budget
then serves as a basis for the appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the
Certificate is amended fo include any unencumbered balances from the preceding
year. The Certificate may be further amended during the year if projected
increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer. The
amounts reported in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts set forth in the
final amended Certificate issued for fiscal 1999.

Appropriations

By October 1, the annual Appropriation Resolution musi be legaily enacted by the
Board of Education which becomes the Tegal level of budgetary control. Prior to
the passage of the annual appropriation measure, the Board may pass a temporary
appropriation measure to meet the ordinary expenses of the District.
Appropriations by fund must be within the estimated resources as certified by the
County Budget Commission, and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not
exceed the appropriation at any level of control. Any revisions that alter the
total of any fund appropriation or alter total function appropriations within a
fund, or alter total object appropriations within functions must be approved by
the Board of Education. The Board may pass suppiemental fund appropriations so
long as the total appropriations by fund does not exceed the amounts set forth
in the most recent Certificate of Estimated Resources.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for all funds consistent with statutory provisions. Appropriation
amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Education
throughout the year by supplemental appropriations which either reallocate or
increase the original appropriated amounts. During the year, supplemental
appropriation measures were legally enacted, however, none of these amendments
were significant. The budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary
comparisons represent the final appropriation amounts, including ail amendments
and modifications.

Encumbrances

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of
expenditures on the non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that portion of
the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain Tegal compliance. On
the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as a
reservation of fund balance for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental

funds and reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary
funds.
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AarL3HDRT R ST SCHOOL DISTRICST
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURFOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999 :

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

lapsing of Appropriations

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts
to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to
future appropriations. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the
succeeding fiscal year and need not be reappropriated.

CAS v

To improve cash management, cash received by the District is pooled. Monies for
“all funds, including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pooT. Individual
fund integrity is maintained through District records. Each funds’ interest in
the pool is presented as "Equity 1n Pooied Cash and Investments™ on the Combined

Balance Sheet. T

During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to STAR Ohic, repurchase
agreements, treasury notes federal agency securities, commerc1a1 paper, bankers
acceptances and cert1f1cates of deposit.

Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reporied at
fair value which is based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment
coniracis such as repurchase agreements and cert1f1cates of dep031t are reported
at cost. :

The District has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Chio {STAR
Ohio) during fiscal year 1999. STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the
State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the State to pool their
funds for investment purposes. . STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an
investmeni company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are values at STAR
Ohio’s share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on June
30, 1999. - B

Following Ohio statuies, the Board of Education has specified the funds to
receive an allocation of interesi earnings. Interest revenue has been credited
to the general fund, district managed student activity funds, auxiliary services,
permanent improvement fund, construction fund and the employee benefits self
insurance fund. Interest credited to these funds during fiscal year 1999
amounted to $1,317,728 which includes $118,121 assigned from other District
funds.

For purposes of the Combined Statement of Cash Flows and for presentation on the
Combined Balance Sheet, investments of the cash management pool and invesiments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the
District are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with an initial
maturity of more than three months are not considered to be cash equivalents.
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WADSWORTH CGITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 20, 1898

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
T IS

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents set
aside to establish a budget stabilization reserve. This reserve is required by
State statute and can be used only after receiving approval from the State
Superintendent of Public Instruction. A fund balance reserve has alsc been
established.

Restricted assets in the debt service fund represent cash set aside to pay
accrued interest received from the $13,000,000 in bonds issued.

1 TORY

Inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. For
all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The cost of
inventory items are recorded as an expense in the proprietary fund types when
used. Inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated food, purchased food
and non-food supplies, and they are expensed when used.

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

General fixed assets are noit capitalized in the funds used io acguire or
construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction costs are
reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are
reported in the general fixed assets account group. Fixed assets utiiized in the
proprietary funds are capitalized in the respective fund. ATl purchased fixed
assets are valued at cost when historical records are available and at an
estimated historical cost when no historical cost records exist. Donated fixed
assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The
District does not possess any infrastructure.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. In proprietary
funds, improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related fixed assets, as applicabie.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated.
Depreciation of furniture and equipment in the proprietary fund types is computed
using the straight-1ine method over an estimated useful 1ife of five to twenty
years.

PREPAIDS

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items.
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HROSWORTH CovY SCACLL DISTRIACT
NOTES TD THE GENERAL PURPUSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1899

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
INT VERN VENUES

In governmental funds, entitlements and non-reimbursable grants are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and available. Reimbursable grants are
recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred.
Other than commodities, grants for proprietary fund operations are recognized as
non-operating revenues when measurable and earned. The District currently
participates in various State and Federal programs, as folTows: ’

Grants and Eptitlements
Entitlements

General Fund L
State School Foundation Program State Property Tax Relief

Special Revenue Funds ' 7
MCDAC Grant 7 ERPDC Grant

Career Development "~ Non-Public Schooi Pupils

Debt Service Fund
State Property Tax Relief

Capiftal Projecis Funds

State Property Tax Relief - SchoolNet
Non-Reimbursable Grants
Special Revenue Funds -
Title VI-B Title I
Title VI Vocational Education .
Safe and Drug Free Schools School to Work
Eisenhower Professional Development Grant Special Education-Preschool Grant
Professional Development Block Grant Lead School Grant

Reimbursable Grants
General Fund o e
Driver’s Education , - Vocational Equipment

Proprietary Funds ) ) . .
State School Lunch Program Government Donated Commodities
National School Breakfast and

Lunch Program

SHORT-TERM INTERFUND ASSETS S

Transactions between funds that are vrepresentative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
"Interfund Receivable/Payable”.
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WADSMOKTH CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ju 9

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District reporis compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 16 "Accounting for Compensated Absences”. Vacation leave and
other compensated absences with similar characteristics should be accrued as a
Tiability as the benefits are earned by the employees if both of the following
conditions are met.

1. The employees’ rights to receive compensation are attributable to services
already rendered.

2. It is probabie that the employer will compensate the employees for the
benefits through paid time off or some other means.

QOther compensated absences with characteristics similar to vacation Teave are
those which are not contingent on a specific event outside the control of the
employer and employee. , :

Further, sick Teave and other similar compensated absences are those which are
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee. The District has accrued a liability for these compensated absences
using the termination method when the following criterion is met. The benefits
are earned by the emplioyees and it is probable that the employer wiil compensate
the employees for the benefits through cash payments conditioned on the
employees’ retirement ("termination payments").

The sick leave liability has been based on the District’s past experience of
making termination payments for sick leave.

For governmental funds, that portion of the Tiability which is non-current is
reported in the general long-term obligations account group. Liabilities that
use current expendable resources are recorded in the fund from which the
employees are paid. In proprietary funds, compensated absences are expensed when
garned and the entire amount is reported as a fund TiabiTity.

ACCRU TIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATION

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued Tiabilities are reported as
obligations of the funds regardiess of whether they will be Tiguidated with
current vresources. However, claims and Judgements, compensated absences,
contractually required pension contributions and special termination benefits
that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the
general long-term obligations account group to the extent that they will be paid
with current available expendable financial resources. In general, payments made
more than sixty days after year end are considered not to have been made with
current available financial resources. Bonds and long-term loans are reported as
a liability of the general long-term obligations account group until due.

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported
as liabilities in the appropriate funds.
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CADSWORTH SITY SCHOCL DISTRICT o
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1938

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FUND BALANCE RESERVES

The District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are Tegally
segregated for specific future use or which do not represent available expendable
resources and therefore are not available for appropriations or expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available
for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves are estabiished for
encumbrances, prepaids, debt service principal, property taxes and budget
stabilization. ‘

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures
or expenses initially made from it that are properiy applicable to another fund,
are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of expendiiures or expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Non-
recurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual
equity transfers. A1l other interfund transfers are reported as operating
transfers. :

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principlies requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reporied in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

JOTAL COLUMNS ON GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total columns on the General Purpose Financial Statements are captioned
{Memorandum QOnly) to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate
financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position,
rasults of operations or cash flows in conformity with generaliy accepted
accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation.
interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
balance on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the
budgetary basis as provided by law and described above is based upon accounting
for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis), All Government Fund Types is presented on the
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the
budget. The major differences between the budget and the GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to
when susceptibie to accrual (GAAP basis).
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WADSWORTH C1TY SCHOOL DISTRICT T T e e
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEHENTS
UNE 30, 1999

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued}

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to
when the TiabiTity is incurred (GAAP basis).

3. OQutstanding year end encumbrances are freated as expenditures for all
funds {budget basis) rather than as a reservation of fund balance for
governmental fund types and as note disclosure in the proprietary fund
types (GAAP basis).

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at the end of the year
on the budget basis to the GAAP basis are as follows:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues aﬁd ther Financing Sources Qver {Under}
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
All Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Prajects
GAAP Basis $ 26,111 $ (73,411  $ 1,681,072 % 9,877,203
Net Adjustments for ) :
Revenue Accruals 754,380 83,002 30,042 55,212
Net Adjustments for .
Expendi ture Accruals (45,068 (30,865 (300,997> 402,661
Encumbrances _ (591, 4433 (131,553) . ~(- ) (23,265, 208)
Budget Basis 3123 980 $0152.827 ${1.410. 117 $(12,930,430)

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments are restricted by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code.
State statutes require the classxflcatlon of monies held by the District into
three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the
treasury. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the District
Treasury, in commercial accounts payabie or withdrawable on demand, incliuding
negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit
accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Board of Education has identified
as not required for use within the current two year period of designation of
depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of
deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of
depositories, or by sav1ngs or deposit accounts 1nc1ud1ng, but not limited to,
passbook accounts.
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RRDTLATEY LOTY SCREOL CUSTRICYT
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies
which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end
of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be
evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from
the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook
accounts. Interim moneys are permitted to be invested in the following
securities: - T

1. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligaticn or
security issued by the United States Treasury or any other obligation
guaranteed as to principal or interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by
any federal government agency or instrumentality, including but not
Timited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan
Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation,
Government National Morigage Association and Student Loan Marketing
Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of
federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities Tisted above provided that
the market value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement
must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at ieast two percenti
and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not
exceed thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obTligations of the State of Ohio;

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting_exclusively of obiigations
described in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements
secured by such obligations, provided that investmenits 1in securities
described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

€. The State Treasurer’s investment pool {STAR Ohio); and

7. Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not
to exceed one hundred and eighty days from the date of purchase in an-
amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim moneys available
for investment at any one time.

Protection of the District’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial
institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the
treasurer by the financial institution or by a singie collateral pool established
by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies
deposited with the institution.
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WADSWORTH C1TY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TG THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued}

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase
agreements and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the .
purpose of arbitrage, the use of Teverage and short selling are also prohibited.
An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless
matched to a specific obligation or debt of the District, and must be purchased
with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment
for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investmenis to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not
represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from-the
custodfian.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of
risk as defined in GASB Statement No. 3, "Deposits with Financial Institutions,
Investments and Reverse Purchase Agreements”.

Deposits

At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was ${237,061)
and the bank balance was ${259,665}. Of the bank balance:

1. $75,068 was covered by federal depository insurance.

Investments . o . e

The District’s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the
level of risk assumed by the District at year-end. Category 1 1includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held
by the District or its agent in the District’s name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments which are held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the District’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty
or by its trust department or agent but not in the District’s name. Investments
in STAR Ohio are not categorized since they are not evidenced by securities that
exist in physical or book entry form.

Carrying Amount Fair

Category 1 2 3 Value
U.S. Treasury Note $ -0- % 741,656 3 -0- 3 739,734
FNMA Discount Notes =0« 8,137,427 -0- §,158,201
FHLMC Discount Notes -0~ 11,867,416 -0- 11,934,478
Commercial Paper -0- 4,705,771 -0- 5,743,919
FFCB Bonds -0- 1,797,035 -0- 1,794,985
FHLB Bonds -0- 8,283,179 -0« 8,244,300
FHLB Discount Notes -0- 1,953,382 -0- 1,989,940
FFCB Discount Notes -0- 400,500 -0- 399,468
Bankers Acceptances -0- 988,047 -0- 993,483
Certificates of Deposit - 1,500,000 -0- 1,300, 060
$ -0- 540,374,913 3 -0- 41,498,508
STAR Chio 2,130,656
Total Investments 5432 igizi‘lbé
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NOTE 4 ~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The classification of cash and investments on the combined financial statements
is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9 "Reporting Cash Flows of
Proprietary and Non-Expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting”. A reconciiiation between the classifications of
cash and investments on the combined statements and the classification per GASB
Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash, Cash Equivalents
and Investments/Deposits Investments
GASB Statement No. 9 $43,392,103 3 -0-
Investments:
U.S. Treasury Note (739,734) 739,734
FNMA Discount Notes (8,158,201) 8,158,201
FHLMC Discount Notes - {11,934,478) 11,934,478
Commercial Paper (5,743,919) 5,743,919
STAR Ohio (2,130,656) 2,130,656
FFCB Bonds (1,794,985) 1,794,985
fHLB Bonds © 0 {8,244,300) 8,244,300
FHLB Discount Notes . ~—. {1,989,940) 1,989,940
FFCB Discount Notes - {399,468} 399,468
Bankers Acceptance . (993, 483) 993,483
Certificates of Deposit {1,500,000) - 1.500.0800
GASB Statement No. 3 3 (237,061} $43.629,164

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. = Second half
distributions occur in a subseguent fiscai year. Properiy taxes include amounts
tevied against ail real, public utility and tangible personal property used in
business Tocated in the District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1l
on the assessed value listed as of the pricr January 1, the lien date. Public
utility property taxes attached as a Tien on December 31 of the prior year, were
Tevied April 1, and are collected with real property taxes. Assessed values for
real property are established by State Taw at 35% of appraised market value. Al1l
property is required to be revalued every six years. Public utility property
taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 100% of true value (with
certain exceptions) and on real property at 35% of true value. Tangible personal
property taxes are Tevied afier April 1 on the value Tisted as of December 31 of
the previous year. Tangible personal property assessments are 25% of true value.
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 1999 faxes were collected are:

1998 second Half 1999 First Half
Valuations Valuations
Amount Percent Amount Percent
Real Property:
Commercial/Industrial $ 52,874,450 12.80% 3 54,252,380 12.44%
Residential /Agricuitural 287,147,190  89.48 305,980,250 70.10
Public Utilities 16,970 p.01 11,520 0.01
Minarals 91,580 0.01 98,100 0.91
Tangible Personal Property:
Public Utilities 34,830,610 B.43 42,129,194 9.66
General 38,334,590 27 . .. %},989.290 7.79 o
Total $413,295.390 100,00% $436.467 144 100.00%
Tax rate per 1,000 of
Assassed Yaluation £54.00 $65.50

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually,
payment is due January 20; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due
January 20 with the remainder payable by June 20. Under certain circumstances,
state statute permits earlier or later payment dates to be established.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September
20. Single county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If paid
annually, payment is due April 30; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is
due April 30, with the remainder payablie by Sepiember 20.

The Medina County Treasurer collects property tax on behalf of all taxing
districts within the County. The County Auditor periodically advances to the
District their portion of the taxes collected. The amount available to the
District as an advance at June 30, 1999, is available to finance fiscal year 1999
operations. The ameount available to be advanced can vary based on the date the
tax bills are sent. ' : S

Accrued property taxes receivable represents delinquent taxes outstanding and
real property, personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable
as of June 30, 1999. Although total property tax collections far the next fiscal
year are measurable, only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is
intended to finance current year operations. The receivable is therefore offset
by a credit to deferred revenue for that portion not intended to finance current
year operations. The amount available as an advance at June 30 and reflected in
1999 revenue was $777,166. $654,107 was available to the General Fund, $23,859
was avaiiable to the Permanent Improvement Fund and $99,200 was available to the
Debt Service Fund.

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 1999 consisted of taxes, actounts, intergovernmental
entitlements and grants. .All receivables are considered collectible in full due

to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of
State programs, and the current year guarantee of federal funds.
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NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the enterprise funds’ fixed assets at June 30, 1999 follows:

Furnituré and Eduibment 7 $468,313
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 332,935

Met Fixed Assets , $135.378

A summary of the changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance Balance
7/01/98 Additions Reductions &/30/%9
Land, Buildings and Co .

Improvements $17,114,257  %1,339,198 $ 469,999 $18,383,456
Furniture and Equipment 5,882,737 587,186 256,800 8,193,063
Vehicles 1,583,936 286,085 199, 164 1,670,861
Textbooks 1,246,238 -g- -0- 1,246,238
Constiuction in Progress -3- 3.B45 862 -0~ 3 845,862

Total $25,827 168 56,038 271 5325 ,959 $31.337.480

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The account balances by fund of "Interfund Receivable"” and "Interfund Payable"
as of June 30, 1999 are as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
Special Revenue Funds:
Career Development 5 6,998
Miscelilaneous Grants 44,257
Vocational Education - o 27.510
Total Special Revenue Funds 78,765
Debt Service Fund:
Bond Fund $216,599
Capital Project Fund:
Permanent Improvements 130,859
Agency Fund: ) )
Student Activities ] 6.975
Total A1l Funds $216.599 .$216.599
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NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for
real property, building contents and vehicles. Vehicle policies include
liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage. In addition, the
District has established a health care self-insurance fund. The purpose of this
fund is to pay medical, dental and vision claims of the District’s employees and
their covered dependents in order to minimize the total cost of annual health
care insurance. The District has contracted with a third party administrator to
direct this program. Self-insurance is in effect for aggregate claims up to
$2,006,644 per year. Claims in excess of this aggregate stop Toss are insured
by private carriers.

The claims Tiability of $109,922 reported in the fund at June 30, 1999, is based
on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 30
which requires that a Tiabiiity for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of
costs reTating to incurred but not reported claims to be reported. The costs are
to be based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims using past
experience adjusted for current trends, and any other factors that would modify
past experience. The claims 1iability is based on an estimate supplied by the
District’s third party administrator. A summary of the fund’s claims Tiability
in 1998 and 1999 were as follows:

BaTﬁﬁEe"' - Cu;féhfiYe;f Claims Bélance at

Beginning of Year “Claims Payments End of Year

1998 $ 50,424  $1,519,180  $1,460,281 $109,323
1999 109,323 1,400,123 1,399,524 109,922

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Changes in long-term obligations of the District from July 1, 1998 through June

" Batamce Balance

Issue 7/01/98 Additions Reductions 6/30/99
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP - , , ’ T
Bond Anticiparion Notes $10,500,000 $12,000,000 $710,500,000 312,000,000
General Obligation Bonds:
Bus Purchase Bonds
5.00%; 06/98 - D4/02 125,000 -0- 30,000 95,000
School Improvement Bends - 1998
3.75% - 5.125%; Q4798 - 12/22 14,750,000 -0- 225,000 14,525,000
School Improvement Bonds - 1999
3.30% - 4.40%; 05799 - 12722 -0- 13,000,000 -0- 13,000,000
Compensated Absences Payable 2,725,188 6,406 5,384 2,723,710
Intergovernmental Payable 174,601 259,500 174,601 259,500
Total General Long-Term Qhligations 72,789 $2§|265|20§ $1U‘935l48§ sagi503,210
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Bonds will be paid from the Debt Service Fund.
Intergovernmental Payables and Compensated Absences w111 be paid from the fund
from which the employee is paid.

Principal and interest requirements to vretire general obligation bonds
putstanding at June 30, 1999, are as f011ows:

Fiscal Year Ending Bus Purchase s:;hool Inprovementi - Sé:h-;:ol Improvement

June 30, Bonds Bonds - 1998 Bonds - 1999 Total
2000 $ 34,730 3 894,826 7 s 8383 435 3 1,812,811
2001 35,250 289,374 C 791,500 1,816,224
2002 34,650 1,064,826 . 807,925 1,907,401
2003 -0- 1,096,964 823,075 1,920,039
2004 -0- 1,097,282 837,000 1,934,282
Thereafter -0- ... __20.721.302 19,275,208 40,016,410
Total 104,650 25,864,174 23,418,343 49,407,167
Less Interast 2,650 11,339,174 i 10,4718 343 21,787,167
Principal $_95.000 $14,.525,000 $_1X,000.000 $27.620,000

ATl bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the District.

A summary of the changes in the District’s bond anticipation notes payable for
the year ended June 30, 1999 is as foilows:

Balance i : | ?F&ﬁé%ﬁ;li 7Bafancé

7/01/98 Issues . Retirements 6/30/99
4.375% S -
Bond Anticipation Note I ' CoT T
Matures 08/04/98. $ 4,900,000 $ -0- $ 4,900,000 % -0-

[ 4.23% ;
Bond Anticipation Note S - o
Matures 08/04/98 5,800,000 -0- 5,600,000 -0~
4.23% |
Bond Anticipation Note ,

Matures 08/04/98 -0- 12,000,000 ~Q- 12.000.000
Total Notes Payable $10,500.000 $12.000.000 $10.500,000 $£12.000,000

The net proceeds of the bond anticipation notes were used to provided funding for
capital improvements and have been reported in the Capital Projects Fund. They

wiil be repaid by the General 0b11gat10n Bonds issued by the District in Apr1]
1999.
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NOTE 11 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The District maintains four enterprise funds; Food Service, Uniform School
Supplies, Vocational Education and Adult Community Education which are operated
on a sales basis. The table below refiects the more significant financial data
relating to the enterprise fund of the District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1999:

) - adult
Uniform School Vocetional Communi ty
Food Service Supplies Education Education Total
Operating revenues $ 724,033 $ 16,509 175,517 7 3 9,871 s 925,930
Operating expenses befare

depreciation 937,728 14,051 155,027 11,802 1,118,608
Depreciation expense 20,350 -0~ -0- -a- 20,350
Operating income/(loss) (234 ,045) .. .. 2,458 20,490 1,930 (213,028)
Federal donated commodities 45,300 -0- -Q0- -0- 45,300
QOperating grants 127,603 -0- -Q- -0- 127,603
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (143 -0- -0- -0- (1635
Net Income/{Loss) (41,285) 2,458 20,490 ¢1,931) (40,268)
Net working capital (158, 666) T 19,690 51,522 11,588 {75,866)
Total assets {168,895) 19,6%0 40,951 12,074 261,610
Total equity (23,287 19,690 51,522 11,587 59,512
Encumbrances at June 30, 1999 % 302 $ 7,920 $ 4,135 % -d- & 12,357

NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLANS

A. State Teachers Retirement System

The District participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio
(STRS}, a cost sharing multipie employer public employee retirement system
administered by the Stafe Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides basic
retirement benefits, disability, survivor and health care benefits based on
eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
established by Chaptier 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS jssues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required
suppiementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the
State Teachers Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-3771. - A

Plan members are reguired to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered
salary and the District is required to coniribute 14 percent; 6.0 percent was
the portion used to fund pension obligations. Contribution rates are
established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, upon recommendation of
its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10 percent
for members and 14 percent for empioyers. The District’s contributions to
STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $730,268,
$1,264,464 and $1,346,837, respectively; 83.0 percent has been contributed
for fiscal year 1989 and 100 percent for fiscal years 1998 and 1997.
$290,180 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999, is
recorded as a liability within the respective funds.
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NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

B. School Employees Retirement System

The District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(SERS}), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-Tiving
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority
to establish and amend benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 3309
of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly avaiiable, stand-alone
financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the
School Employees Retirement System, 45 North Fourth Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215. S

Plan members are required to contribute 9 percent of their annual covered
salary and the District is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The current rate is 14 percent of annual covered payroli.
For fiscal year 1999, 9.02 percent was the portion to fund pension
obligations. The contr1but10n requirements of pTan members and employers are
established and may be amended, up to statutory maximum amounts, by the SERS
Retirement Board. The District’s contributions for pension obligations to
SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999, 1958 and 1957 were $272,293,
$268,344 and $259,730, respectively: 27.2 percent has been contributed for
fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for the fiscal years 1998 and 1997.
$480,471 vrepresenting the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999, is
recorded as a liability within the respective funds and general long-term
debt account group.

NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and
their dependents through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to
retired non-certified employees and their dependents through the School Employees
Retirement System (SERS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians’ fees,
prescr1pt1on drugs and reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit
provisions and the obligation io contribute are established by the Systems based
on guth0r1tj granted by State statute. Both systems are Funded on a pay-as- you—
go bhasis e : —-

The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if
any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients
pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio
Taw, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the empTloyer
contribution rate, currently 14 percent of covered payroll. Through June 30,
1998 (the latest information available), the Board allocated employer
contributions equal to 3.5 percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve
Fund. Beginning July 1, 1998, this allocation was increased to 8.0 percent. For
the District, this amount equaled $973,576 during fiscal 1999.
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NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance
in the Fund was $2,156 million at June 30, 1998. For the year ended June 38,
1998, net health care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000 and STRS had 91,999
eligible benefit recipients. - o . T ' :

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more years
of qualifying service credit, and disability and survivor benefit recipients.
Members retiring on or after August 1, 1989, with Tess than twenty-five years of
service credit must pay a portion of their premium for health care. The portion
is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

For this fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were
4.98 percent of covered payroll, an increase from 4.21 percent for fiscal year
1998. In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal
to 14 percent of the difference between a minimum pay and the member’s pay, pro-
rated for partial service credit. For fiscal year 1999, the minimum pay has been
established at $12,400. The surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the
14 percent employer contribution rate, provides for maintenance of the asset
target level for the health care fund.

The target leval for the health care reserve is 125 percent of annual health care
expenses. Expenses for health care at June 30, 1998, were $111,900,575 and the
target lTevel] was $§139.9 million. At June 30, 1998 (Tatest information available)
SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3
milTlion. SERS has approximately 50,000 participants currently receiving health
care benefits. For the District, the amount to fund health care benefits,
including the surcharge, equaled $387,292 during the 1999 fiscal year.

NOTE 14 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The criteria for determining vacation and sick Teave benefits are derived from
negotiated agreements and State laws. Classified employees working eleven or
twelve months per year are entitled to an annual vacation, with pay, based on
length of service in the District. Accumulated unused vacation time is paid to
empioyees upon termination of employment. Teachers and administrators working
fewer than ten months per year do not earn vacation time. Teachers,
administrators and classified employees earn sick leave at the rate of one and
one-fourth days per month. Sick Teave may be accumulated for an unlimited number
of days. For certified and classified employees, payment is made at retirement
for accumulated sick leave and is determined by taking one-fourth of the first
120 days and adding to that one day for every eight days of the next 240 days
accumulated, to a maximum of 60 days. The amount of accumulated vacation and
sick Teave of employees paid from governmental funds that meets the eligibility
requirements has been recorded in the appropriate governmental fund as a current
Tiability to the extent that the amounts are expected to be paid using expendable
available financial resources. The balance of the 1iability is recorded in the
general long-term obligations account group. Vacation and sick Teave for
employees paid from proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of
the fund when earned.
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NOTE 15 - COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The following funds had a deficit fund baTlance caused by the recognition of
expenditures and/or nonrecognition of revenues on the modified accrual basis of
accounting which substantially differs from those recognized on the cash basis
of accounting:

Fund Deficit
Special Revenue: _
Teacher Development $ 388
Miscellaneous State Grants 17,707
Title VI-B 1,553
Vocational Education 31,454
Title I o ' 11,531
Title VI 427
EHA Preschool 84
Enterprise:
Food Services 23,288

NOTE 16 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The following construction commitments at June 30, 1999 wiil be financed with
Capital Project Funds revenues: . )

Total Expendéd
Authorized To ‘ Balance
Project Cost 06/30/99 6/30/99
"New” Franklin Elementary o ) a -
School $ 4,424,125 $ 608,450 $ 3,815,675
"New" Lincoin Elementary , - - o o ;
School ' 3,939,887 1,070,439 2,869,448
Grades 7/8 Buiiding 16,482,027 1,122,524 15,359,503
Wadsworth High School
Music/Science Addition 2,136,145 B82,9212 1,253,233
Wadsworth High School
Baseball Field : 195,538 161,538 34,000
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NOTE 17 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The Midland Council of Governments is a Jointly governed organization among
twenty-two Boards of Education. The Council of Governments was formed to provide
efficient and cost effective computer and data processing services to member
Boards. Financial support for the Council of Governments is provided by member
fees Tevied according to the number of students within each member’s respective
District. The Executive Committee determines and sets the fees for all services.

Representation on the MidTand Council of Governments consists of one member
appointed by each member Board of Education. The representative shall be either
the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent or Treasurer of the member District
SBoard of Education. The Council of Governments is governed by the Executive
Committee who are elected for two year terms except the position of Fiscal Agent
Superintendent which is a permanent appointment. The Executive Commiftee
consists of seven members. The members are two Superintendents, two Treasurers,
iwo members-at-large and the Fiscal Agent Superintendent.

NOTE 18 - CONTINGENCIES

Grants

The District received financial assistance from Federal and state agencies in the
form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs
generally reguires compiiance with terms and conditions specified in the grant
agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed
claims resuiting from such audits could hecome a Tiability of the general fund
or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such
disaliowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall
financial position of the District at June 30, 1999.

Litigation

The District is not currently a party to any legal proceedings which would have
a material impact on the financial statements.

NOTE 19 - SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain
portions of the Ohio school funding pian unconstitutional. The Court stayed the
effect of its ruling for one year to allow the Ohio General Assembly to design
a plan to remedy the perceived defects in that system. Declared unconstitutional
was the State’s "school foundation program", which provides significant amounts
of monetary support to this District. During the fiscal year ended June 30,
1999, the District received $7,883,389 of school foundation support in total,
with $7,823,916 reported in the general fund and $59,473 reported in the special
revenue funds.
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NOTE 13 - SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION {continued)

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous piecas of TegisTation have been passed
by the Ohio General Assembly in an attempt to address the issues ijdentified by
the Court. The Court of Common Pleas in Perry County is currenily reviewing the
new Taws and, in a decision issued on February 26, 1999 determined they are not
sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the "thorough
and efficient” clause of the Ohio constitution. The State has appealed the
decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Chio Supreme Court. At this
time, the Ohioc Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The
decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio
Supreme Court, and, in as such, districts are still operating under the laws that
the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the District is unable to determine
what effect, if any, this decision will have on its future State foundation
funding and on its financial operations.

NOTE 20 - REQUIRED BUDGET SET ASIDES

The District is required by State statute to annually set aside an amount based
on prior fiscal year revenues for the purpose of textbooks and other
instructional materials and an additional amount for capital improvements.
Amounts not spent by fiscal year end or offset by similarly restricted resources
must be held in cash at fiscal year end and carried forward to be used for the
same purposes in future fiscal years. Amounts are also fo be set aside for the
budget stabilization reserve if the District’s base amount use for the yearly set
aside calculation increases three percent or more from the prior fiscal year.
This amount is to be included in the budget stabilization reserve.

The following information describes the changes in the amounts set aside for
budget stabilization, textbooks and instructional materials and capital
improvements from the end of the prior fiscal year to the end of the current
fiscal year. o

Cép?éa[ ’ Budget
Textbooks  Improvements Stabilization Totals
Set Aside Cash Balance as of June 30, 1968~ ~ $ -9- 8  s0-  $130,677 S 130,877
Current Year Set-Aside Requirement o 348,374 348,374 43,510 740,258
Current Year Offsets (59,475 (669,728 -0- (709,201
Gual i fying Dishursements (583,470 {831,987) -Q- 1,515,457 |
Total 5394i2692 5‘151;3'3412 1745‘187 ;1‘353,723;
Cash Balance Carried Forward to Fiscal Year 2000 =0 - - Q- 174,187 174,187

Since the qualifying expenditures and offsets for the textbook/instructional
materials and capital improvements set &side exceeded the fiscal year 1999
requirement, no amount will bhe carried forward to the next fiscal year.
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NOTE 20 - REQUIRED BUDGET SET ASIDES (continued)

Amounts remaining at year-end have been set aside to satisfy statutory
requirements are represented by cash and cash equivalents and are presented as
restricted assets on the Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding amounts are
reported as reserves of fund balance.

NOTE 21 - YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The Year 2000 Issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data
processing systems and other equipment that may adversely affect the governments
operations.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment
necessary fto conducting District operations and has identified such systems as
being financial reporting, payroll, empioyee benefits and educational statistics
reporting [through the State’s Education Management and Information System
(EMIS)] and the energy management system.

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting System software for
its financial reporting, the State of Ohic Uniform Payroll System Software for
its payroil and employee benefits and the State of Ohio Equipment Inventory
System for its fixed assets accounting. The State is responsible for remediating
these systems.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of meney to the District in the
form of basic state aid "school foundation® and federal and state grant payments.
Further, the State processas a significant amount of financial and non-financial
information about the District through EMIS. The State is responsible for
remediating these systems.

Medina County collects property taxesfor distribution to the District. Medina
County is responsible for remediating its tax collection system.

Heating systems have been assessed and 1t has been determ1ned that the systems
will not be affected. N o T

Because of the unprecedenied nature of the Year 2000 Issue, ifs effects and the
success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the
Year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the District is or will
be Year 2000 ready, that the District’s remediation efforts will be successful
in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the District does business will
be Year 2000 ready.
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GARY B. FINK & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
111 Broad Sireet

Suite 206

Wadsworth, Chio 44281
330/336-1706 Fax 330/334-5118

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Wadsworth City School District
Wadsworth, Ohio 44281

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Wadsworth City
School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 24, 2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with
genarally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Compiiance

As part of obtaining reasonabie assurance about whether the Wadsworth City School
District’s general purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed fests.of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of general purpose financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The vresults of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted an immaterial instance of non-compliance that we
have reported to management of the Wadsworth City School District in a separate
Tetter dated January 24, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporiing

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Wadsworth City School
District’s internal contrel over financial reporting in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general
purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control
over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively lTow level the risk
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general
purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within
a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters invelving the internal control over financial
reparting and its operations that we consider to be material weaknessas.
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FERCT CNOCOMPLIANCE AND OB INTEDNAL COMTRSL 2UER FINAMCIAL RETORTING RASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATTMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNHENT AUDITING
STANDARDS (continued)

~
7

This report is intended for the information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be usead by anycne cother than these specified parties.

)R

GARY B. FINK & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Certified Public Accountants
January 24, 2000

45



GARY B. FINK & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
111 Broad Street

Suite 206

Wadsworth, Ohio 44281
330/336-1706 Fax 330/334-5118

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Education
Wadsworth City School District '
Wadsworth, Chio 44281 , *

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Wadsworth City School District with the
types of compliance requiremenis described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB} Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its
major federal program for the year ended June 30, 1999. The Wadsworth City
School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs. Compliance with the requirements of Taws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
Wadsworth City School District’s management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Wadsworth City School District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-
Profit Qrganizations. . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compiiance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Wadsworth City
School District’s compiiance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. OQur audit does not provide
a legal determination on the Wadsworth City School District’s compliance with
those requirements.

In our opinion, the Wadsworth City School District complied, in all material
raspects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its
major federal program for the year ended June 30, 199%.
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ROZIET 9W TOMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREEENTI "APPLICABLI 7O EACH MACOR PROCGRAM AND
INTERNAL CUNTROL OVER COHPLIAHCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH O0MB CIRCULAR A-133
{continued)

Internal Control Over Compliance e

The management of the Wadsworth City School District is responsibie for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with
requirements of Taws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Wadsworth City
School District’s internal control over comp1iance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
comptiance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133. o

Qur consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily
disclose ail matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses.
A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low Tevel
the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted
no matters involving the internal controT over comp11ance and 1ts operat1on that
we consider fo be material weaknesses.- - .

This report is intended for the information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

<) _TEY

GARY B. FINK & ASSOCIATES, INC.
Certified Public Accountants
January 24, 2000 : T -
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Wadsworth City Schoul District
Schedule of Expenditures of Federai Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999

Federal Grantor/
Sub Grantor

Program Title

.S DEPARTMENT QF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Total Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Title VI-B

Spectal Education - Title VI-B
Total Title VI-B

Special Education - Preschool Handicapped
Special Education - Preschool Handicepped
Total Preschool Handicapped

Total Special Education Cluster

Vocational Education Basic Grant
Vocational Education Basic Grant
Total Vocational Education Basic Grant

Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communitics
Total Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communitics

Eisenhower Professional Development
Eisenhower Professional Development
Eisenhower Professional Development
Eisenhower Professional Development

Total Eisenhower Professional Development

Innovative Education Program Strategies
Innovative Edueation Program Strategies

Total Innovative Education Program Strategies
Total U.S, Deparunent of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed Through Ohio Departiment of Education:

Employment Serviees and Job Training - School to Work

Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Nutrition Cluster;
Food Distribution Progrzm
School Breakfast Program
MNational School Lunch Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - Nutrition Cluster

Total Federal Assistance
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Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's
Number _ Number _ Recgipts Exp_endltmes
84.010 C1-81-98 30 324,968
T 84.010 C1-81-98C 3,868 3,868
- 84,010 C1-51-58 305282 ) 293.359
309,150 322,195
84.027  6B-SF98 0 11,696
84.027 6B-5F99 189,476 183,998 )
189,476 195,604"
84.173 PG-S1-98 0 13,338
84.173 PG-S1-99 13,182 12,306
13,182 © 25,644
202,658 221,338
84,048 20-A598 24,572 14,914
84.048 20-A599 155,892 176,784
- - 180,464 191,698
84 186 DR-S198 0 5.636
24,186 DR-8199 20,248 17,020
: 20,248 22,656
84.281 MSB-8197C 0 40
84.281 MS.8198 7,234 2,360
84,281 MS-3198C 0 4,054
84.281 MS-8199 15,311 Q
22,545 6,454
84.298 C2-3198 0 4,176
84,298 C2-8199 16,727 16,303
i 16,727 20,479
751,792 784,820
17249 WK-BE-00 15,000 _ 978
10.550 NrA 39,890 41,552
10.553 N/a 8,013 8,013
10.555 N/A 113,526 113,526
161,529 _ 163;691
$928.321 $948.389



NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a summary
of the activity of the Wadsworth City School District’s federal award
programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market
value of the commodities received and disbursed. Monies are commingled
with state granfts. It is assumed federal monies are expended first. At
June 30, 1999, the Wadsworth City School District had no significant food

commodities in inventory.
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WADSWORTH CITY SCHOOAL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 §505

JUNE 30, 1939

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d}(1)(7)

Type of Financial Unqualified
Statement
Opinian

(d) (1) (i)

Were there any material | No
control weakness
conditions reported at
the financial statement
Tevel?

(d){1)(ii)

Were there any other No
reportable control
weakness conditions
reported at the
financial statement
Tevel?

(d) (1) (i11)

Was there any reported No
material non-compliance
at the financial
statement level?

(d) {1} {iv)

Were there any material | Ne
internal control
weakness conditions
reported for the major
federal program?

(d) (1) (iv)

Were there any other No
reportable internal
control weakness
conditions reported for
the major federal
program?

(d) (1) (v)

Type of Major Program Ungualified
Compliance Opinion

(d) (1) {vi)

Are there any No
reportable findings
under 95107
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SCHEDULZ OF FINDINGS ‘ND QUESTIONET COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 {505

(CONTINUED)

{d)(1){vii) Major Program: Title I Grants to Local
Educational Agencies,
CFDA #84.010

(d) (1) (viiti) Dollar Threshold: Type Type A: > $300,000

A/B Programs Type B: all others
(dy (1) (ix} Low Risk Auditee? .| Yes
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

Mone
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' CMB o, L348-0057
1.5, DEPARTMVENT COfF CTHMERCE - SUREAU CF THE CENSUS

ACTING AS COLLECTING AGENT FOR

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

% Forw ST-SAC
{887

Data Coflection Form for Reporting on
AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS

Complete this form, as required by OMB Circular A-133, "Audits
cf States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.”

Single Audit Clearinghouse
1201 E. 10" Street
Jeffersonville, IN 47132

mm/dd/yy 6/30/99

m GENERAL INFORMATION (To be completed by auditee, except for liem -7)'
1. Fiscal year ending date for this submission 2. Type of Circular A-133 audit

1 X Singie audit 2 [ Program-specific audit

3. Audit period covered
1 & Annuali
2 [ Biennial

3 [Jother - Months

FEDERAL 4. Date received by Federal
GOVERNMENT clearinghouse
USE ONLY

§. Employer Identification Number (EIN)

a. Auditee EIN 34-6002962

b. Are multipie EINs covered in this report? 1 [lYes 2K No ™

8. AUDITEE INFORMATION

a. Auditee name
WADSWORTH CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

7. AUDITOR INFORMATION (To be completed by auditor)

a. Auditor name
GARY B. FINK & ASSOQCIATES, INC.

. Auditee address (Number and street)
Street 3680 COLLEGE STREET

City WADSWORTH

State OHIO ZIP Code 44281

b. Auditor address (Number and street)
Street 111 BROAD STREET, SUITE 206

City WADSWORTH

State CHIO ZIP Code 44281

¢. Auditee contact
Name DAN BOWMAN

Title TREASURER

¢. Auditor contact
Name SCCTT K. VARNEY

Title MANAGER

d. Auditee contact telephone
330-335-1303

d. Auditor contact telephone
330-336-1706

e. Auditee contact FAX (Opfional)
330-334-5242

e. Auditor contact FAX (Optional)
330-334-5118

. Auditee contact E-mail (Optionai)
WADC_BOWMAN@TCCSA.OHIO.GOV

{. Auditer contact E-mail (Opticnal)
GBFINC@AOL.COM
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MY . [N

s - [ N
Lty SOl D0

Q. AUDITEE CERTIFICATION STATEMENT - This is to certify
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the auditee has:
(1) Engaged an auditor to perform an audit in accordance
with the provisions of OMB Circuiar A-133 for the period
described in Part {, [tems 1 and 3; (2) the auditor has
completed such audit and presented a signed audit report
which states that the audit was conducted in accordance with
the provisions of the Circular; and, (3) the information
inciuded in Parts {, i, and {If of this data coliection form is
accurate and complete. | declare that the foregoing is true
and correct.

//,gg’/abﬁﬁ

g. AUDITOR STATEMENT - The data efements and information
included in this form are limited to those prescribed by OMB
Circuiar A-133. The information included in Parts [1 and [ of
the form, except for Part 11, items 5 and 8, was transferred
from the auditor's repori(s) for the period described in Part [,
itemns 1 and 3, and is not a substitute for such reports. The
auditor has not performed any auditing procedures since the
date of the auditor's repori(s). A copy of the reporting package
required by OMB Circufar A-133, which includes the compiete
auditor's report(s), is available in its entirety from the auditee
at the address provided in Part | of this form. As required by
OMB Circular A-133, the information in Parts Il and Wt of this
form was entered in this form by the auditor based on
information included in the reporting package. The auditor has
not performed any additional auditing proceduras in
connection with the completion of this form.

Sign

e of certifying official ’Dat%i; Day Year
REASIRER  PAnir B D mal) Lem=T  dfan/oces
Narme/Title of certifying official - | Signature of auditor - ate Month Cay Yesr

GENERAL INFORMATION - Continued

8. Indicate whether the auditee has sither a Federal cogniza
1 {1 Cognizant agency 2 §qJ Oversight agency

nt or oversight agency for audit. {Mark (¢ cne box)

9, Name of Federal cognizant or oversight agency for audit.

{Mark (X} one box)

o1 ] African g3 '] Federal Emergency 16 [ ] Justice 08 Peaca Coms
Development Management Agency 17 Labor 59 |_| Small Business
Foundation 34 7] Federal Mediation and 43 [_| National Aeronautics Administration

oz [_] Agency for Congciliation Service " dnhd Space 96 [] Social Security
International 3 [] General Services Administration Administration
Development Administration ag [ | National Archives and 19 State

10 {_{ Agricuiture sz [1 Heaith and Human Hecords Administration 20 [_| Transportation

11 Commerce Servicss "~ 08 [] National Endowment for 21 Treasury

s4 |_| Corporation for 14 [ Housing and Urban the Arts 82 [_{ United States
National and Devetopment 06 [] Naticnal Endowment for information Agency
Community Service 03 [ Institute for Museum the Humanities 84 {_| Veterans Affairs

12 [_] Defense Services " 47 ] National Science Cther - Specify:

a4 X Education o4 [] Inter-American Foundation

a1 | Energy Foundation gr ] Office of National Drug

65 Environmental 15 [ Interior Control Policy
Pratection Agency .

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (To be completed by auditor)

1. Type of audit report (Mark (X) one box)
1 (X! Unqualified opinion 2] Quatified opinion

a[_] adverse opinion

4{_] Disclaimer of opinion

2, 1Is a "going concem" explanatory

paragraph included in the audit report? 1 Yes 2N
3. Is a reportable condition disctosed? 1] Yes 2] No -SKIP o ltem S
4. Is any reportable condition reported as

a material weakness? 1] Yes 20 No _
5. s a material noncompliance
| disclosed? 1] Yes 2] No
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SR 0l FEDERAL PROGRAMS (7o be completed by auditor)

1. Type of audit report on major program compliance
1 Unqualified apinion 2] Qualified opinion 3] Adverse opinion

2, What is the dollar threshold to distinguish Type A and Type B programs §_.520(b)7?
$300,000

3. Did the auditee qualify as a low-risk auditee (§ .530)?
14 Yes 201 No
4. Are there any audit findings required to be reporied under §_.51 D(a)‘P
1] Yes 2 X No
5. Which Federal Agencies are required to receive the reporting package? (Mark (X) all that apply)

4[] Disclaimer of opinion

o1 [T} African Development

83 ] Federal Emergency

Justice
17 Labor
49 Nationat Aeronautics

Peace Corps

Foundation Management Agency Smail Business
oz [} Agency for 34 [] Federal Mediation and Administration
Internationai Conciliation Service - and Space 98 [} Social Security
Development 3 ] General Services Administration Administration - -~
10 | | Agriculture Administration sg [ National Archives and 19 [| State
1 [l Commerce g3 | Health and Human Records 20 | 1 Transportation
g4 [_| Corporation for Services Administration 21 Treasury

National and t4 ] Housing and Urban os [1 National Endowment 82 United States
Community Service Development for the Arts Information Agency
12 Defense oz ] Institute for Museum os [} National Endowment 84 [} Veterans Affairs
84 Education Services for the Humanities oo <] None
81 Energy 04 [ Inter-American 47 [} Naticnal Science | [ Other - Specify:
53] Environmental Foundation ~ Foundation :
Protection Agency 15 [ Interior a7 [} Office of National

- Drug Controfl Policy
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88 East Broad Street

- - - -~ P.0. Box 1140
STATE OF OHIO ) Columbits, Ohio 43216-1140
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR  Telephone 614-466-4514 B
: =T 800-2820370 — T

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

Facsimile 614-466-4490

WADSWORTH CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEDINA COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus,
Ohio.

By: ’MV Mﬂﬁ_

Date: MARCH 14, 2000
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